Public Document Pack

Agenda
Performance Scrutiny Committee - Place and Corporate
Date:

Monday, 8 October 2018

Time:

4.00 pm

Venue:

Committee Room 1 - Civic Centre

To:

Councillors C Evans (Chair), M Al-Nuaimi, G Berry, J Clarke, M Cornelious,
K Critchley, D Fouweather, I Hayat and J Richards

Item
1

Agenda yn Gymraeg / Agenda in Welsh (Pages 3 - 4)

2

Apologies for Absence

3

Declarations of Interest

4

Minutes of the Meeting held on 9 July 2018 (Pages 5 - 14)

5

Recommendations Monitoring - Budget Proposals 2018-19 (Pages 15
- 24)

6

All Wales Performance Analysis 2017-18 - Year End Summary
(Pages 25 - 34)

7

Conclusion of Committee Reports
Following the completion of the Committee reports, the Committee will
be asked to formalise its conclusions, recommendations and
comments on previous items for actioning.

8

Scrutiny Adviser Reports (Pages 35 - 44)
a) Forward Work Programme Update (Appendix 1)
b) Action Sheet (Appendix 2)
c) Information Reports
d) Scrutiny Letters

Contact: Meryl Lawrence, Scrutiny Adviser
Tel: 01633 656656
E-mail: scrutiny@newport.gov.uk
Date of Issue: 1 October 2018

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 1

Agenda
Pwyllgor Craffu ar Berfformiad – Lleoedd a Materion Cofforaethol
Dyddiad:

Dydd Llun, 8 Hydref 2018

Amser:

4 y.p.

Lleoliad:

Ystafell Bwyllgora 1 - Canolfan Dinesig

Y Cynghorwyr: C Evans (Cadeirydd), M Al-Nuaimi, G Berry, J Clarke, M Cornelious, K Critchley,
D Fouweather, I Hayat and J Richards

Eitem

1.

Agenda yn Gymraeg

2.

Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb

3.

Datganiadau o Fuddiant

4.

Cofnodion y Cyfarfod a 9 Gorffennaf 2018

5.

Monitro Argymhellion - Cynigion Cyllideb 2018-19

6.

Dadansoddiad Perfformiad Cymru Gyfan 2017-18 - Crynodeb Diwedd Blwyddyn

7.

Casgliad Adroddiadau Pwyllgor
Yn dilyn cwblhau adroddiadau'r Pwyllgor, gofynnir i'r Pwyllgor
ffurfioli ei gasgliadau, argymhellion a sylwadau ar eitemau blaenorol
ar gyfer gweithredu.

8.

Adroddiad Cynghorydd Craffu
a) Diweddariad o’r Flaenraglen Waith - Atodiad 1
b) Taflen Gweithredu - Atodiad 2
c) Adroddiadau Gwybodaeth
d) Llythyrau Craffu

Person cyswllt: Meryl Lawrence, Cynghorydd Craffu
Ffôn: 01633 656656
E-bost: scrutiny@newport.gov.uk
Dyddiad cyhoeddi: Dydd Llun, 1 Hydref 2018 Page

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4

Minutes
Performance Scrutiny Committee - Place and Corporate
Date:

9 July 2018

Time:

4.00 pm

Present:

Councillors C Evans (Chair), M Al-Nuaimi, G Berry, J Clarke, M Cornelious,
K Critchley, D Fouweather and J Richards

In Attendance:

Councillor D Mayer (Cabinet Member Community and Resources)
Paul Jones (Head of Streetscene and City Services), Keir Duffin (Head of
Regeneration, Investment and Housing), Gareth Price (Head of Law &
Regulation), Owen James (Assistant Head of Finance - Technical and
Development), Richard Leake (Strategic Procurement Officer), Emma Johnson,
Rhys Cornwall (Head of People and Business Change) and Meryl Lawrence
(Scrutiny Adviser)

Apologies:

Councillors L Lacey

1

Declarations of Interest
None.

2

Minutes of the Meeting held on 4 June 2018
The minutes of the meeting held on 4 June 2018 were approved as an accurate record of
the meeting.

3

Performance Update - Year End 2017-18
Streetscene and City Services (Place)
Attendee:
- Paul Jones (Head of Streetscene and City Services)
The Cabinet Member for Streetscene had sent his apologies as he was unable to attend due
to the need to attend another meeting at the same time.
The Head of Streetscene presented a brief overview to the Committee which included the
following amber measures and advised that all other measures for the service area were
green:
-

PAM/017 – Visits to Sports and Leisure Centres per 1000 population
The original target had been set including visits to Newport LIVE and private facilities, but
should have been calculated based upon only Newport LIVE visits. This measure would
be amended to include only Newport Live facilities and visits to private gyms would not
be counted.

Page 5

-

STR/L/018 - % of municipal waste recycled at HWRC
This measure had improved slightly but still short overall. There were plans to build a
second site which would allow the Council to engage more with residents. Plans were in
place to permanently reverse the entrance into the HWRC after temporarily reversing on
the weekends which began in May and would be permanently changing shortly.

-

PAM/010 - Bi-monthly Cleanliness Inspections of highways &relevant land%
This was slightly ahead of target but the last 2 months of the year had seen a significant
drop due to the snow, as staff from the cleansing team switched to winter maintenance
work and when the snow had been cleared drivers had been over the driver allowance,
which had meant a drop in performance, however the figures were returning to normal.

Members asked the following:


PAM/030 – Municipal waste reused, recycled and composted
It was queried why the target had been reduced to 58%? It was explained that there was
slightly less garden waste the previous year due to the weather and that previously
Councils had been able to include wood waste as recyclable, however this was no longer
the case so the target had been reduced.



PAM/022 - % of principal C roads that are in over poor condition
A Member asked why the target had increased to 7.40% this year but missed the
previous year’s target and only slightly improved this year. It was clarified that for this
indicator the lower the percentage means better performance, as the target for the
service area was to be below 7.40%.



PAM011 – Response Rates for removing reported Fly Tipping Incidents Members
commented that the score of 99.74% against the target of 97.00% was excellent and
asked what response rates were acceptable? Members were advised that Councils were
challenged to collect within 5 days but that the Service strives to respond quicker and in
most cases completed within 2 days. The score was an improvement on the previous
year and one of the best in Wales. It was clarified that where fly tipping was on private
land there was a separate process and collection could take longer.



Members discussed Highway infrastructure and the Welsh Government £20M investment
that was beginning to impact, but asked whether there was anything positive to suggest
that Newport could look towards further improvement in the mid-term future. Members
were advised that it was estimated that if every road was brought up to par it would cost
around £1.2 Billion. The extra investment would help with some roads, however unless
there is external investment there it would be a problem to maintain all roads.



SCS/L/002 – Number of visitors to city parks, open spaces and coastal paths.
Members queried how the precise figure was captured? It was advised that this was done
via a mix of counters at some venues, samples and estimates.



A Member praised the Cleansing Team for attending and removing waste reported on a
Saturday. Another Member praised the Winter Maintenance Crew for their assistance in
the snow.



STR/L/018 - % of municipal waste recycled at the HWRC – Members queried the
shortfall of achieving 59.77% against the target of 65.00%. The Head of Service advised
that performance had improved from the previous years and this should increase once
the permanent route change into the HWRC takes effect and staff would have more time
to engage with the residents attending.



Members asked if schools were being charged to recycle and would need to find extra
money to recycle. Members were advised that the Council could not provide commercial

Page 6

waste collections free of charge, however Wastesavers had previously subsidised
schools for recycling but had now reduced their subsidy to 50%, and the more that
Schools recycled the cheaper their waste collection.
The Chair thanked the Head of Streetscene and City Services for attending.
Regeneration Investment and Housing (Place)
Attendee:
- Keir Duffin (Head of Regeneration, Investment and Housing)
The Head of Regeneration, Investment and Housing advised the Committee that the Cabinet
Member for Regeneration and Housing had been advised that there was no need to attend
where Red and Amber Measures had already been explained to the Committee and the
position had not changed.
The Head of Regeneration, Investment and Housing presented a brief overview to the
Committee which included the following two Red measures:
-

PAM/013% of empty private properties brought back into use;
PAM/014 Number of new homes created as a result of bringing empty properties
back into use.

as reported in the previous Quarter 3 Performance Report a review of the service was
underway which would include consideration of new programmes and projects within this
area. The Amber Measures in the Service Area had met their targets in the previous year so
their targets had been increased to provide challenge to improve performance this year but
these increased targets had been narrowly missed. All other measures were Green.
Members asked the following:


RIH/L/061 – Value of tourism (£ million)
It was clarified that the Target for this performance measure was an error and should
have read £300 not £3 and would be corrected. A Member stressed the importance of
having a serious set of measures in place to monitor tourism, as it was important to the
future economy.



Members asked about the target setting for the service area’s performance measures.
Members were advised that the recent Red measures hadn’t been met as against its
comparators the Council was underperforming, but the service area was looking to
improve performance. Targets for the Amber measures had been set to raise
performance above the Welsh average and strive to exceed them and they had made
some improvement since the previous year. The service area was examining areas
where underachievement to look to implement change. Targets set had been successful
but the results with empty homes had been disappointing.



PAM/016 (LCL/001b) Use of Public Library Services
A Member queried whether the target of 3525 was correct on this Amber Measure. The
Officer advised the Committee that he would double check the target figure for PAM/016
and provide a response after the meeting.



PAM/013% of empty private properties brought back into use
A Member thought that that the Cabinet Member should be in attendance to answer
questions and voiced concern that not much progress had been achieved on the
performance of this measure which should be addressed as there are lots of people on
the housing waiting list. There was a need to do more about empty private properties; a

Page 7

change in the direction of travel on this measure was needed. The view was also
expressed that the target was too low in for this measure. It was asked that these
comments be forwarded to the Cabinet Member. The Head of Service accepted the
comments about the performance against this measure and took responsibility for the
performance, adding that the Cabinet Member had been advised not to attend where
there was no new advice to provide to the Committee, and the position had not changed
from the previous update. The Head of Service also advised that a full review of empty
homes was being undertaken.


With regard to the City Centre, a Member asked about the evolution of the City Centre
Master Plan, whether the Consultation was still open and would are there differences to
the version last seen in January? Members were advised that consultation had finished
and responses were being pulled together and more graphics were being included as it is
clearer for people to view. The consultation views received were overall very positive,
based upon the consultation changes would be made and the Plan would be shared soon
with the Public. The service area were looking for a balance between giving short and
clear information that is useful for the wider public, and providing more detail in future.



RIH/L/043 – Number of people approaching authority for housing advice and
assistance.
A Member asked if the Head of Service had confidence that the figure reported was the
true measure. The Head of Service confirmed that he was confident with the figures of
the performance measure.



A Member enquired whether the Head of Service had an update from Welsh Government
upon assistance with Business Rates. The Head of Service advised that he would
provide a response upon the position on Business Rates assistance to Scrutiny for
Committee Members following the meeting.



RIH/L/055 – Number of new business start-ups
A Member referred to the pop-up business school held in June and asked for an update
upon how many new businesses resulted? Members were advised that the pop up
business school was undertaken across Wales and was the most successful ever in
Wales, 139 potential businesses attended, and service area are awaiting figures for final
outcome. Members were advised that there were also grant programmes and a range of
business support in place to help local businesses.



A Member asked in view of the Severn Bridge Tolls coming to an end, what was being
done to attract businesses looking to relocate and promote Newport. It was advised that
the Council have a good relationship with Welsh Government and received a high level of
contacts through that. Heathrow Hub was meeting at Llanwern to discuss a 10 year
infrastructure arrangement with Heathrow. There was also the arrangement with Great
Western Cities and the Department meets regularly with a range of developers. It was
also advised that as the Team was very small it was challenging to attend expo’s so the
Council was looking to share this with partners to assist.

The Committee thanked the Head of Regeneration, Investment and Housing for his
attendance.
Law and Regulations (Place)
Attendee:
- Gareth Price (Head of Law and Regulation)
The Head of Law and Regulation advised the Committee that the Cabinet Member for
Licensing and Regulation sent his apologies for the meeting.

Page 8

The Head of Law and Regulation presented a brief overview to the Committee which
included the following two Amber measures:
-

PAM /032 - % Food establishments broadly compliant with food hygiene standards
which although marginally under target is above the Wales Average.

-

LS/L/008 – Legal Searches in 5 days % which dipped to 70% last May due to problems
with the IT system and completing 100% now but still amber due to the cumulative impact
of the significant dip earlier in the year.
for which performance was the same as reported to Committee in the previous Quarter 3
Performance Report and are not of major concern.

Members asked the following:
-

PAM /032 - % Food establishments broadly compliant with food hygiene standards
A Member questioned why the Council had missed this target last year and this year?
It was clarified that in terms of trend it was Council policy to set targets above the Wales
Average. For the last 3-4 years this measure had been in lower quartile in Wales. The
compliance rate had gone up and the service area was only dealing with significant risk
premises, so unless there is an increase in resources this may not rise another 2%, but
even that could not guarantee that compliance levels would increase.



LS/L/008 – Legal Searches in 5 days %
Members sought clarification on comments made on this measure. The Head of Service
explained that if systems had been running all year the targets would have been hit easily
and would hit 100% for the months, however when systems were down searches were
still being processed but couldn’t be added to the system.



LS/L/027 % ASB incidents resolved by wardens
A Member asked whether the Antisocial behaviour service can continue to be run at this
level, recognising the impact of other pressures such as decriminalised parking.
Members were advised that decriminalised parking required different enforcement.
Community Safety Wardens would be trained in a different way. The number of Wardens
had decreased significantly over the last 5 years due to budget cuts and austerity. The
Head of Service advised that the Antisocial Behaviour and CCTV services are
discretionary services and some of the few that the Council have complete control of but
unfortunately this area had felt the impact of budget savings. Despite the lowered number
of wardens delivering the service, the resolution rate was high which was commendable.
Wardens also assist Environmental Health Officers to deal with low level noise nuisance
and help with dog control queries.
A Member praised the performance achieved for this measure, but asked why the target
had been dropped by 5% from last year. Members were advised that the target was
refined as the service area reviewed annually. The increased target of 95% wasn’t
achievable so it was reset at 90%. This was the first time the service area had used a
discretionary indicator and set the target.



Target setting – it was queried whether this is always flexible and down to the service
area’s own discretion. Members were advised that only local measures are flexible,
when they are not benchmarking against other councils. The service area examines the
Wales average and strives to improve.



A Member queried whether it was right for Service Areas to set their own targets for their
performance measures. The Head of Service advised that this wasn’t just undertaken by
the Head of Service, that the process includes discussion with and accountability to

Page 9

Strategic Directors and the Leadership team. National measures and Wales averages
were examined as part of the process and it was only local measures that have element
of discretion. If Scrutiny was of the view that the targets were not consistently set, this
could be looked into and reported to the Committee.
The Committee thanked the Head of Law and Regulation for attending.
Finance (Corporate)
Attendees:
- Owen James (Assistant Head of Finance)
- Richard Leake (Category Manager)
- Emma Johnson (Income Collection Manager)
- Alan Wathan (Chief Internal Auditor)
The Assistant Head of Finance advised the Committee that the Head of Finance sent his
apologies for the meeting, and that the relevant lead officers from Finance had attended to
answer any queries from the Committee upon the performance measures. An overview of
the report was presented given that explained all Finance targets are locally set with the only
comparable target being Council Tax collection rates. Results were mixed but mainly green.
One Red measure related to Lodge Card and there were two Amber Measures. Targets were
well met in terms of Council Tax collection rates overall and Performance measure FIN014
was a positive result as it showed the arrears are also being collected.

Members asked the following:


FIN/L/014 - % total Council Tax collected as % of 17/18 budgeted amount A
Member commended the positive result and asked how it was achieved? The Income
Collection Manager advised that two performance measures had been placed
together so Council Tax was being collected as well as arrears over the year which
equalled the total amount of Council Tax collective against the amount that the
Council needed the department to collect. Although the CFH/007 Council Tax
Collection % measure didn’t quite reach the target of 97%, however collecting for
long term standing debts was targeted and would put the service area in a better
position than at the start of the year.



A Member queried the reasons for non-payment of Council Tax Arrears, whether
people could not pay or would not pay. The Income Collection Manager advised that
there were mixed reasons why people could not or would not pay. If someone had
arrears and needed to pay current council tax then a decision needed to be made
which to pay. For the service areas performance measure against other Councils it
was preferable for residents to pay the current year and make a regular payment for
arrears to ensure their financial position does not get any worse. Members were
informed that 4 different payment dates were offered for direct debits and people can
spread the payments over 12 months if they choose.



CFH/007 Council Tax Collection % - A Member queried that although this
performance measure was narrowly this missed this year, performance had declined
from the previous year. Members were advised that the overall collection rate was
higher than what was needed for the budget so the Council was in a better position
than last year, so collectively the result was a lot better.



FIN/L/024% No of Suppliers using Lodge Cards
Members queried what a Lodge Card was and asked had the service area given
many cards to suppliers? The Category Manager advised that the Lodge Card is

Page 10

similar to a credit card that was held in Procurement. A Lodge Card supplier gets
money paid to them within 4-5 days and removes the invoicing process. This was a
discretionary performance measure and was disappointing that target was missed.
The Team had done a lot of work with card provider Barclaycard, however more
needed to be done. The focus now would be to increase the number of suppliers
having the lodge card. This would mean companies get paid quicker and takes
invoicing out of the system. Currently 5 suppliers had a card, and the Team were
looking to increase this number.


CFH/006 Payment of Invoices within timescales %
A Member queried whether there were any proposals to bring in an alternate
measure to avoid payment delays? Members were advised of an E-invoicing
programme held in Procurement, and were looking at suppliers who can take normal
purchase cards. A few programmes worked in tandem. The aim was to reduce the
number of invoices coming into the Council. An example was given to consolidate
invoices for suppliers who make multiple deliveries i.e. for food a 14 day summary will
be produced but only one invoice would be sent out.



A Member queried whether it was right for Service Areas to set their own targets for
their performance measures and who signs this off. Members were advised that
discussions were held with the team and the Leadership Team to see what was
realistic and challenging, previous year’s targets examined and look to improve.
There would be occasions such as austerity, members of staff that things may need
to be adjusted. An example was then given a few years ago where a performance
measure for payment of invoices was adjusted due to the number of staff cut from the
team as it would not have been achievable. The Head of Finance would also discuss
target setting with the Cabinet Member and Chief Executive.



Members queried if debt collectors that are used by the Council were properly vetted
and had the standard accreditation. It was advised that the only Enforcement Agents
used and covered by an accredited and professional body. The Council would not
use any agents that caused alarm and while debt collection was never a popular
measure, any complaints against Enforcement Officers were robustly discussed and
investigated and that the Officers wear body cameras.

The Committee thanked the Officers for attending.
People and Business Change (Corporate)
Attendees:
- Councillor David Mayer (Cabinet Member for Community and Resources)
- Rhys Cornwall (Head of People and Business Change)
The Head of People and Business Change presented an overview of the report. It was
advised that service area targets were set alongside the Cabinet Member and Chief
Executive. There were also two measures that are externally set which are out of the
Council’s control, as when the Council joined the Shared Resource Services, the SRS
strategic board had already decided performance measures for partners.
PBC/062 - % ICT Helpdesk calls resolved at first point of contact – The Service Desk
tool did not measure calls resolved at first point of contact. The new Service Desk tool would
be able to measure against the right set of calls at which time the performance should
represent an improved and accurate measurement. However working with SRS, if 85%
target is set, the Council should be doing better than 69% regardless of those issues. Things
were improving but slowly, and the Council is working with SRS to make things better, as

Page 11

dealing with as many calls at first point of contact would free staff to undertake development
courses and other work.
PBC/061 – ICT customer satisfaction % - 73.70% was very comparable with other partners
across SRS. Only 5% of responses were completely dissatisfied. Once a month meetings
are held with SRS to discuss figures. The direction of travel was getting worse towards the
end of the year as there were issues and it was worrying that the response rate was low only 16% out of 1792 surveys sent.
HRP/049 – Number of employees trained in Welsh awareness – it was advised that
Welsh Language Standards require the Council to raise awareness with staff. Last year
training was more academically based and slightly missed the target of number of people on
Welsh courses.
Member asked the following:


PBC/062 % ICT Helpdesk calls resolved at first point of contact
Members thanked the Cabinet Member for attending referring to the equipment and
software failure mentioned in the report, enquired was it a large proportion and also
what the criteria was for a call to be logged as resolved. Members were advised that
there is a monthly breakdown from SRS regarding system and equipment failures
which could be provided to the Committee. An example was given that if there were
issues with a laptop, if SRS could remotely connect and sort the problem and the
laptop works then it was logged as resolved. It could not be resolved until the laptop
could be used again.



A Member queried why the target for Employee sickness had been reduced.
Members were advised that until January the service area could have justified
adjusting the target this year as in December the number was way below, however
due to the winter virus, increases in January and February followed and settled again
in March. At next Cabinet, a report would be discussed regarding the early year
performance to see how well the service area did in comparison with the target.

The Committee thanked the Cabinet Member – Community and Resources and Head of
People and Business Change for attending.
There was a discussion about additional previous years’ performance data obtained by a
Member through additional research prior to the meeting as part of their preparation of
questions.
It was clarified that it is open to any Member of Scrutiny to undertake independent additional
research around a topic and this varies among the Members of each Committee. The
previous years’ performance data sourced had contributed effectively to a number of
questions on performance trends. In addition, following the circulation of each Scrutiny
Agenda when the Pre Meeting agenda is was emailed to Members, they are asked if they
want more information or assistance with the Agenda to contact the Scrutiny Team before
the meeting. A process had been agreed with the four Chairs of Scrutiny that if a Member of
a Scrutiny Committee requested information through the Scrutiny Team, then that additional
information would be emailed to all Members of the Committee for information. It was also
open to the Committee to request changes to the format of reports they receive, so it could
request additional previous years’ performance data be included in future performance
reports to the Committee.

Page 12

Conclusion
Comments to the Cabinet
The Committee noted the performance for the Services areas, and agreed to forward the
minutes to the Cabinet as a summary of the issues raised.
The Committee wished to make the following comments to the Cabinet:
1.

Generally overall there had been a lack of improvement in the Red and Amber
Indicators over the final quarter and a more in depth response should have been
provided on these. There was a concern that there did not appear to an appropriate
pace of change to improve the Council’s performance against these measures.

2.

The Committee had concern regarding self-setting of targets and proposed that the
Council should ensure a robust challenge be put in place for target setting, involving an
independent sign off of targets set, perhaps by another Head of Service.

3.

The attendance of the Cabinet Member for Community and Resources was
appreciated. The Committee understood that the agreed process for Cabinet Members
attendance at Scrutiny as where there were Reds and Amber measures to scrutinise.
The Committee required Cabinet Members and Officers to attend the Scrutiny
Committee as invited, aside from unforeseen circumstances.

4.

The Committee raised concerns regarding some of the specific measures that they
wished to draw the Cabinet attention to:
a.

PAM/013% of empty private properties brought back into use
The Committee feel that not much progress had been achieved on the
performance of this measure, which should be addressed as there are lots of
people on the housing waiting list. There was a need to do more about empty
private properties; a change in the direction of travel on this measure was
needed. The view was also expressed that the target was too low in for this
measure. Although the Head of Regeneration, Investment and Housing explained
that a review of empty homes was being undertaken, it was felt that sufficient
progress had not been made, nor sufficient explanation on the timings for the
conclusion of the review. The Committee ask that the Cabinet Member attend for
this item in future to explain the progress being made towards this measure.

b.

RIH/L/057 % of vacant commercial properties in the City Centre
Members discussed this measure, in the context of the impact of the City Centre
Masterplan. This Plan had been discussed a number of times at the Committee
and concern expressed regarding how the Council will respond to issues raised
within this consultation in the final published version.

c.

People and Business Change Measures
The Committee commended the Head of People and Business change for his
clear concise explanations for each of his Service Area’s Performance Measures
in Appendix 5 of the report and would ask that all Appendices be completed to
the same standard, as some only had a brief reference on the Head of Service
Dashboard page.

d.

The accuracy of the Performance data should be improved e.g. the target figure
for RIH/L/061 – Value of Tourism (£Million) should have read £300 not £3.

Page 13

e.

Further Information Requested
o The Committee requested that the previous two years’ performance data be
included in future performance reports to enable comparison and trend
monitoring.
o

Regeneration, Investment and Housing:
PAM/016 (LCL/001b) Use of Public Library Services The confirmed target figure for Amber Measure PAM/016.
The updated position from Welsh Government upon Business Rates
assistance.

o

4

People and Business Change:
PBC/062 % ICT Helpdesk calls resolved at first point of contact The latest monthly breakdown from SRS regarding system and equipment
failures.

Forward Work Programme Update
Attendee:
- Meryl Lawrence – Scrutiny Adviser
The Scrutiny Adviser presented the Forward Work Programme Update to the Committee and
outlined the reports for the next two meetings, as well as the Briefings upon Housing and the
Quality of the Road Network to be arranged beforehand.
It was proposed that the Briefings are scheduled on the same day and time as Committee
meetings but a fortnight apart.
Agreed:
The Committee approved the topics and invitees scheduled for the next two meetings and
agreed the above proposal for scheduling the two Briefings on a Monday at 4pm a fortnight
apart.

The meeting terminated at 6.12 pm

Page 14

Agenda Item 5

Scrutiny Report
Performance Scrutiny Committee – Place and Corporate
Part 1
Date:

9 October 2018

Subject Recommendations Monitoring –
Budget Proposals 2018-19
Author

Scrutiny Adviser

The following people have been invited to attend for this item:
Invitee:

Area / Role / Subject

Bev Owen

Strategic Director - Place

Paul Jones

Head of Streetscene and City Services

Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations
1

Recommendations to the Committee
The Committee is asked to:
1. Consider the Officer responses in relation to the recommendations made by the
Committee at the 22 January 2018 meeting upon the 2018-19 Budget Proposals.
2. Determine if it wishes to make any comments or recommend actions to the Head of
Service or Cabinet.

2

Context
Background

2.1

The Budget saving proposals were presented to the Performance Scrutiny Committee- Place and
Corporate as part of the Budget consultation for the financial year 2018/19. The proposals were
included in the Medium Term Financial Plan at the meeting on the 22 January 2018 (Minutes
available here).

2.2

The Committee made a number of recommendations which were presented to Cabinet alongside
the information gained from the rest of the consultation. The Budget Process and Public
Engagement aspects of the Budget saving proposals were addressed by the Overview and
Scrutiny Management Committee on the 1 February 2018 (minutes available here) and the

Page 15

monitoring of the recommendations made at the meeting on the 1 February took place on the 26
July 2018 (minutes available here).
2.3

To ensure that the Officers’ responses addressed each of the Committee’s recommendations, the
relevant Head of Service has been requested to provide an update to the Committee. As part of
this update and provide a structure to this update, the Heads of Service have been asked to
directly respond to the specific areas that the Committee commented on, these comments have
been included in the table at appendix 1 for reference. The full comments are available at
Appendix 2.

2.4

The Committee is only looking at the recommendations that were made on the proposals in
January, and how the Officers are implementing the decisions have taken into account the
recommendations of the Committee. The Committee have this opportunity to gather evidence
from the officers as to the implementation of the budget proposals, any comments will be
forwarded to the Cabinet in the form of a Scrutiny Letter, for the Cabinet Member to address any
specific concerns and respond to the Committee at its next meeting in November / December if
appropriate.

3

Information Submitted to the Committee

3.1

Appendix 1 – contains the Head of Streetscene and City Service’s response to the Committee’s
recommendations on the 2018-19 Budget Proposals.
Appendix 2 – contains the Recommendations of the Committee on 22 January 2018, for
information.

4.

Suggested Areas of Focus
Role of the Committee
The role of the Committee in considering the report is to:


Establish whether the monitoring report adequately addresses the Committee’s
Recommendations;
o What progress has been made towards the recommendations?
o What actions are in place to continue progress over the next twelve months?



Question the relevant Officer on any areas the Members feel requires additional
explaining or information.



Query whether the Service Area has achieved the proposed saving as set out in the
business case.
o If the saving has been achieved what impact has it had?
o If no saving has been made, why and will this have a financial impact on this
year’s spending?



Conclusions
o What was the overall conclusion on the information contained in the report?
o Does the Committee wish to make any comments to the Cabinet or directly to
the Cabinet Member to address at the Committee’s next meeting?
o Do any areas require a more in-depth review by the Committee or further
information required?

Page 16

Section B – Supporting Information
5

Supporting Information

5.1

Evaluating the impact of the recommendations made by Scrutiny is an important tool in
assessing whether the work of the Scrutiny Committee’s is making a difference and
making an impact.

5.2

The Centre for Public Scrutiny (CfPS) practice guide ‘Demonstrating and Enhancing
Impact’ (Link) outlines the importance of being able to demonstrate that Scrutiny is
effective and that it has impact.
‘When we talk about scrutiny having an “impact” we mean that the work of councillors sitting on
scrutiny committees should translate into better outcomes for local people. A scrutiny
investigation of an issue should lead to services provided to the public improving. If scrutineers
are unable to demonstrate either to themselves or others that their work adds value and makes a
positive difference to local people, it is more difficult to justify expending resource on it in difficult
financial times.’

5.3

Demonstrating impact does not necessarily mean that a decision was changed, or
altered, Scrutiny’s recommendation of the budget being discussed at this meeting were
centred around identifying risks and potential issues for the Council to take into account
should it chose to proceed with the proposal. The value of Scrutiny in assessing the
implementation of the recommendations at this stage is to check whether those issues
identified by the Committee are being addressed and mitigated against when the
decisions are being implemented.

6

Links to Council Policies and Priorities


The Service Area’ s Budget saving proposals have intrinsic links to all of the Councils
policies and priorities, these links should be highlighted by the Officers in the reports or
through questioning at the Meeting:
Well-being
Objectives

Promote economic
growth and
regeneration whilst
protecting the
environment

Improve skills,
educational
outcomes &
employment
opportunities

Corporate
Plan
Commitments
Supporting
Function

Thriving City

Aspirational People

Build cohesive
& sustainable
communities

Resilient
Communities

Modernised Council

7

Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act

7.1

General questions


Enable
people to be
healthy,
independent
& resilient

In implementing the budget decisions, how is the Council ensuring that the impact upon
future generations is being established and the long term impact identified?

Page 17



7.2

What evidence is provided to demonstrate WFGA has been / is being considered when
implementing these decisions?

Wellbeing Goals


How are the Wellbeing goals reflected implementation of the proposals?
o A prosperous Wales
o A resilient Wales
o A healthier Wales
o A more equal Wales
o A Wales of cohesive communities
o A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
o A globally responsible Wales

7.3

Sustainable Development Principles


Does the report demonstrate how as an authority we are working in accordance with the
sustainable development principles from the act when planning services?
o Long Term
The importance of balancing short-term needs with the need to safeguard the ability to
also meet long-term needs
o Prevention
How acting to prevent problems occurring or getting worse may help public bodies meet
their objectives
o Integration
Considering how the public body’s well-being objectives may impact upon each of the
well-being goals, on their other objectives, or on the objectives of other public bodies
o Collaboration
Acting in collaboration with any other person (or different parts of the body itself) that
could help the body to meet its well-being objectives
o Involvement
The importance of involving people with an interest in achieving the well-being goals,
and ensuring that those people reflect the diversity of the area which the body serves.

8.

Background Papers
Include all additional documents that are referenced in the report, and those that you have used
as background reading.
-

The Essentials - Wellbeing of Future Generation Act (Wales)
Corporate Plan 2017 - 2022
Report to the Performance Scrutiny Committee – Place and Corporate held on 22 January
2018 (Agenda Item 5) and Minutes
CfPS Guide ‘Demonstrating and Enhancing Impact’

Report Completed: 20 September 2018

Page 18

APPENDIX 1
Recommendations Monitoring – Budget Proposals
SS181902 – Closure of Public Conveniences
Scrutiny’s Comments and Conclusions
The Proposals stated a saving of
£20,000 would be made in the first
year. Will this be achieved?

Can you explain at what stage of the
implementation the Council are
currently at?

Officer Response
There are continuing charges being
received for rates and services which are
yet to be permanently removed. The full
saving will then be realised as per the
proposal
The facilities included in the proposal have
all been closed. One (Caerleon Pavilion)
has been subsequently reopened funded by
the museum for one year.
None received. Most of the facilities closed
were not fully compliant with Disability
Discrimination Act requirements.

Is there any evidence to suggest there
has been an impact on disabled or
elderly people by the closure of the
public conveniences?
Has the locality and distance to Yes notices are erected on all facilities;
alternative facilities been advertised?
where appropriate they identify the nearest
alternative. Correspondence with business
regarding advertising alternative provision
was carried out. However no positive
responses were received.
WS181904 – Reducing telephone and face to face services within Customer
Services
Scrutiny’s Comments and Conclusions Officer Response
The Proposals stated a saving of Yes.
£5,000 would be made in the first
year. Will this be achieved?
Can you explain at what stage of the In line with the proposal, the changes are
implementation the Council are not due to be implemented until November
currently at?
2018.

Have the Officers looked into any of The Council is assessing options and taking
the recommended options to mitigate action to support citizens in the following
the impact on citizens? If so what ways:
 Surveying residents to find out about
were the outcomes?
barriers and drivers to using selfservice options.
 Attending Over 50’s Information Day
to promote digital inclusion.
 Launch of easy to use webforms and
Council app in Quarter 3.
 Launch of customer portal in 2019.

Page 19

APPENDIX 1
SS181905 – Introduce parking charges within city parks
Scrutiny’s Comments and Conclusions

Officer Response

The Proposals stated a saving of It is estimated that we will achieve a budget
£40,000 would be made in the first saving of approx. £20k as this scheme will
year. Will this be achieved?
be fully implemented by the end of August
2018, thus leaving six potential months to
generate an income. Initial figures suggest
we are on target for required income.
Can you explain at what stage of the A Cabinet Report has now been signed off
implementation the Council are approving the enforcement notice.
currently at?
An advert now has to be placed for a period
of seven days in the local paper informing
customers that the enforcement notice will
be taking effect.
Appropriate notices are ready for
installation informing customers of the fees
and charges and reminding them to
appropriately comply.
Pay machines have been installed and
charges are active.
Have the Officers produced additional
information (costing and consulted) for
the other car parks that were added to
this proposal?

The Leisure & Environment Services
Manager is currently collating data
regarding car parking capacity for Tredegar
Park, ready 2019/20 budget consideration.

Was further consultation undertaken Further consultation was undertaken with
with the groups the Committee both the café provider and the bowls clubs.
recommended?
It was agreed that both stakeholders would
be issued with x2 car parking permits to
support their onsite function.
In addition, car parking charges will only be
applicable up to 16:00 hours which would
allow the bowls club to operate their
evening
leagues
and
inter
club
competitions with minimal impact.

Page 20

APPENDIX 1
SS191901 – Composting at Docks Way
Scrutiny’s Comments and Conclusions

Officer Response

The Proposals stated a saving of Yes
£42,000 would be made in the first
year. Will this be achieved?
Can you explain at what stage of the Started operation in July – started
implementation
the
Council
are shredding material – currently developing
currently at?
process and health and safety processes.
First 6 months still in implementation
phase.

SS181903 – Review of Back Officer Cemetery Operations and facilities in some
parks
Scrutiny’s Comments and Conclusions

Officer Response

The Proposals stated a saving of Yes
£23,000 would be made in the first year.
Will this be achieved?
Can you explain at what stage of the St Wools Cemetery lodge/former office
implementation
the
Council
are block is now closed.
currently at?
Christchurch mess room facility is closed
however; an electrical supply operating
the radio mast which supports the street
cleaning vehicles remains, however, all
bills associated with this operation is now
being met by Cleaning Team.
The season grass-cutting team were
moved to a unit within Telford depot and
operated out of there. The work has
begun to move the grave digging team to
Telford.

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Performance Scrutiny Committee - Place and Corporate 22 Jan 2018
Conclusions and Comments to Cabinet upon Budget Proposals 18-19

Appendix 2

In conclusion, the Committee agreed to make the following comments to Cabinet on the
following Proposals:
SS181902 - Closure of Public Conveniences
The Committee had concerns that the Business Case was not complete as:
-

-

-

-

The impact of this proposal upon disabled people was not sufficiently mitigated in the
Business Case.
The Business Case did not contain information regarding usage or consultation with
users, particularly those with access issues such as disabled or elderly users.
How near and the location of alternative facilities needed to be identified and
signposted and Members suggested this could be done via Maindee Unlimited /other
businesses / Business Improvement District partners.
There was no evidence in the Business Case of what potential solutions other Cities
or neighbouring local authorities have used to address similar issues to those
identified in the business case, and the rationalisation and identification of alternative
provision in the community.
With the recent City Summit in mind, this proposal was not conducive with the growth
and development of Newport and attracting visitors, as it was the view of the
Committee that this proposal would have a negative impact on the image of the city.
Need to develop Business Cases to fully explain the impact on citizens, and what
consultation has taken place. It would be beneficial to engage earlier in the
development of proposals in future to ensure meaningful involvement when
developing the proposals.

WS181904 - Reducing telephone and face to face services within Customer Services
The Committee had concerns about:
-

The Loss of 0.88 FTE face to face contact and the impact on users as a result.
Issues regarding moving people online from face to face or telephone contact including:
 Computer literacy / those unable to access computers ;
 The difficulty of navigating the Council website;
 The City free Wi-Fi is inconsistent and crashes a lot.

In order to mitigate the impact upon citizens, the Committee suggested the exploration of:
 Live chats and ring back service as offered by other call centres;
 Assistance in libraries for citizens to access computers, and;
 The potential for sharing call centre resources with a partner e.g. Newport City
Homes.
SS181905 - Introduce parking charges within city parks
The Committee welcomed the investment in Belle Vue Car park, but had concerns that the
Business Case was weak due to the lack of evidence of consultation with users particularly
on the pricing structure. Furthermore, the current business operator located in the park had
not received the correct information.
The Committee recommended that:
- More detailed consultation and communication with existing regular users be
undertaken urgently before introduction and particularly on pricing strategy, e.g. for
event customers, Bowls Team tournaments, etc.
- The rollout of this proposal to other parks be removed from this proposal and when
necessary, should be the subject of future separate fully costed and consulted upon
business cases / proposals.

Page 23

SS181901 - Composting at Docks Way
The Committee welcomed this proposal to make a saving and bring the service in house.
SS181903 - Review of Back Office Cemetery Operations and facilities in some parks
The Committee noted that there is information that is not included within the Business Case,
namely:
 The impact on citizens is not accurately reflected - under the new arrangements an
enquiry by a member of the public making about burial records for the City’s cemeteries
would be dealt with centrally via telephone or an appointment in the Civic Centre. This
would present a change to the current provision, and as such would have an impact on
citizens, not being able to access the burial records at the respective cemetery that the
relevant grave is located.
 Within the summary in the Business Case, it is indicated that the proposal includes the
closure of the toilet facilities in the Cemetery. However, this is not referenced in the
‘Impact upon Citizens’ nor the ‘Risk / Mitigation’ sections. Closure of the public toilets in
the cemeteries would impact upon citizens and this impact should be explained within
the Business case.
 There is no mention of the 36% increase in fees to £15 for 30 minutes for an
administrative research of burial records which is included in Street Scene Fees and
Charges schedule later in the report.

Page 24

Agenda Item 6

Scrutiny Report
Performance Scrutiny Committee – Place and Corporate
Part 1
Date:

9 October 2018

Subject: All Wales Performance Analysis 2017-18
Year End Summary
Author

Scrutiny Adviser

The following people have been invited to attend for this item:
Service Area
Overview of Performance Data
and People and Business Change
Service Area
Regeneration, Investment and
Housing
City Services
Law and Regulation

Head of Service
Rhys Cornwall
Head of People and Business Change
Keir Duffin
Head of Regeneration, Investment and Housing
Paul Jones
Head of Streetscene and City Services
Gareth Price
Head of Law and Regulation

Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations

Recommendations to the Committee
1.1

The Committee is asked to consider and evaluate the Public Accountability Measures –
Wales Analysis 2017/18 (Appendix 1) and determine if it wishes to make any comments to
the Cabinet on the Council’s performance.

Page 25

2

Context
Background

2.1

Each year data is submitted to Data Cymru (previously called Data Unit Wales) for comparison
alongside other Welsh Authorities. The data set submitted is known as the ‘Public Accountability
Measures’ or PAMs and they enable local authorities to provide an account of their performance
to the public, including comparing their performance with that of other authorities. The PAMs
also enable the public to hold the authority to account over issues that matter most to them.

2.2

The data for each Local Authority is published in the media and is publically accessible via the
Data Cymru website.

2.3

2017/18 performance has improved for 36% of the performance indicators and performance has
remained unchanged for 7% of the indicators in comparison to 2016-17. 3 of the performance
indicators are in the top quartile and a further 5 are in the upper middle quartile. The analysis
attached in Appendix 1 provides the performance for 2017/18 and includes comparisons of
Newport City Council with the other Welsh Local Authorities.

3

Information Submitted to the Committee

3.1

The Public Accountability Measures – Wales Analysis is attached as Appendix 1.

4

Suggested Areas of Focus
Role of the Committee
The role of the Committee in considering the report is to:


Evaluate how well the Council performed in the Public Accountability Measures Wales
Analysis 2017-18, particularly in the context of other local authorities’ performance;




Assess and make comment on:
o How effectively the Council performed in 2017-18 in the Public Accountability
Measures - Wales; Do the measures have sufficiently challenging targets and
balanced between being realistic and robust?
o The extent to which any underperformance is being addressed and associated
risks are being mitigated; What is being done to improve performance for the
measures in quartiles 2, 3 and 4?
o What barriers are there to improving performance for these measures?
o How is performance of the public accountability measures managed, reported
and escalated?
o The progress being made in performance from previous years;

Conclusions:
o What was the overall conclusion on the report?
o Does the Committee wish to make any comments to the Cabinet?
o Is the Committee satisfied that it has had all of the relevant information to base a
conclusion on the performance of the Council?
o Do any areas require a more in-depth review by the Committee?

Page 26

Section B – Supporting Information
5

Links to Council Policies and Priorities

5.1

This report directly links with all of the Councils Improvement Objectives identified in the
Improvement Plan 2016-18. These objectives also link to the Well-being Objectives agreed by
Cabinet in March 2017, which aim to maximise the Council’s contribution to the Well-being Goals
for Wales and will form part of the new Corporate Plan and Improvement Plan from 2017
onwards. This report relates to the Performance Measures that support the achievement of the
Council’s Service Plans, Improvement Priorities and Wellbeing objectives:
Well-being
Objectives

Promote economic
growth and
regeneration whilst
protecting the
environment

Improve skills,
educational
outcomes &
employment
opportunities

Corporate Plan
Commitments

Thriving City

Aspirational People

Supporting
Function

Modernised Council

Enable
people to be
healthy,
independent
& resilient

Build
cohesive &
sustainable
communitie
s
Resilient
Communitie
s

6

Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act

6.1

The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015 which came into force in April 2016 sets the
context for the move towards long term planning of services.

6.2

General questions
 How will does the Council’s performance impact upon future generations? What is the long
term impact?
 What evidence is provided to demonstrate WFGA has been / is being considered?
 Evidence of links to the Council’s Wellbeing Plan? Are there any areas of concern within the
data that directly link with the Council’s Wellbeing Plan or its objectives.

6.3

Wellbeing Goals
 How are the Wellbeing goals reflected in the Council’s performance?
o A prosperous Wales
o A resilient Wales
o A healthier Wales
o A more equal Wales
o A Wales of cohesive communities
o A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
o A globally responsible Wales

6.4

Sustainable Development Principles


Does the report demonstrate how as an authority we are working in accordance with the
sustainable development principles from the act when planning services?
o Long Term

Page 27

o
o
o
o

7.

The importance of balancing short-term needs with the need to safeguard the ability to
also meet long-term needs
Prevention
How acting to prevent problems occurring or getting worse may help public bodies meet
their objectives
Integration
Considering how the public body’s well-being objectives may impact upon each of the
well-being goals, on their other objectives, or on the objectives of other public bodies
Collaboration
Acting in collaboration with any other person (or different parts of the body itself) that
could help the body to meet its well-being objectives
Involvement
The importance of involving people with an interest in achieving the well-being goals,
and ensuring that those people reflect the diversity of the area which the body serves.

Background Papers
-

The Essentials - Wellbeing of Future Generation Act (Wales)
Corporate Plan 2017 - 2022
Previous Year’s Report to the Performance Scrutiny Committee – Place and Corporate held
on 2 October 2017 (Agenda Item 7) and Minutes

Report Completed: 20 September 2018

Page 28

Appendix 1Wales
Public Accountability Measures Analysis 2017/18
Public Accountability Measures (PAM) - Wales Analysis
Each year the council submits data to Data Cymru (formally the Data Unit Wales), which has produced an analysis tool to enable Welsh authorities to compare their
performance across 18 performance indicators in 2017/18. The data for each Local Authority is published in the media and on the Data Cymru website.
Newport’s Performance 2017/18
Overall Summary of Performance
In 2017/18 the council has continued to improve in 36% of national indicators and 7% remained the same. Regular monitoring of performance throughout the year
by Heads of Service and Cabinet Members has delivered improved services.

PAM Performance
59%
2017/18

36%

Page 29

40%
32%

Better than target

2016/17

52%

Better than previous year

36%

Better than Wales average data
55%
53%

2015/16
40%
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Appendix 1Wales
Performance relative to the rest of Wales
The table below shows the average rank of the PAMs for each authority. The lower values are better because this indicates a higher proportion of performance
indicators in the top rankings. For the financial year 2015/16 Newport’s ranking was 21st and for the financial year 2016/17 our ranking was 22nd. However, in
2017/18 our average rank improved to 16th out of 22 authorities with our rating increasing from 13.84 (2016/17) to 12.67 (2017/18).

Page 30

Position in Wales 2015/16
Average
Local Authority
Rank
Rank
Vale of Glamorgan
6.21
Pembrokeshire
7.74
Denbighshire
8.82
Flintshire
9.51
Carmarthenshire
9.62
Monmouthshire
9.77
Gwynedd
9.97
Ceredigion
10.21
Bridgend
10.64
Neath Port Talbot
10.79
Isle of Anglesey
10.86
Powys
11.13
Rhondda Cynon Taf
11.45
Conwy
11.51
Merthyr Tydfil
11.62
Caerphilly
11.69
Wrexham
12.13
Swansea
12.18
Cardiff
12.28
Torfaen
12.67
Newport
12.92
Blaenau Gwent
13.61

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

Position in Wales 2016/17
Average
Local Authority
Rank
Rank
Flintshire
8.36
Monmouthshire
8.89
Denbighshire
9.04
Isle of Anglesey
9.11
Vale of Glamorgan
9.11
Gwynedd
9.15
Torfaen
9.43
Ceredigion
9.64
Powys
10.19
Merthyr Tydfil
10.68
Swansea
10.79
Carmarthenshire
11.07
Wrexham
11.27
Pembrokeshire
11.33
Neath Port Talbot
11.57
Bridgend
11.64
Cardiff
11.69
Caerphilly
11.81
Conwy
11.96
Blaenau Gwent
12.68
Rhondda Cynon Taf
13.04
Newport
13.84

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

Position in Wales 2017/18
Average
Local Authority
Rank
Rank
Vale of Glamorgan
7.17
1
Denbighshire
8.89
2
Gwynedd
9.78
3
Monmouthshire
9.89
4
Flintshire
9.94
5
Powys
10.06
6
Cardiff
10.50
7
Carmarthenshire
10.67
8
Swansea
10.72
9
Isle of Anglesey
10.83
10
Conwy
11.00
11
Pembrokeshire
11.71
12
Merthyr Tydfil
12.00
13
Ceredigion
12.33
14
Torfaen
12.44
15
Newport
12.67
16
Neath Port Talbot
12.78
17
Bridgend
12.78
18
Caerphilly
13.22
19
Rhondda Cynon Taf
13.41
20
Wrexham
13.89
21
Blaenau Gwent
14.39
22

Appendix 1Wales
The table below details comparative budget levels of each Local Authority in Wales for 2017/18 and 2018/19. Welsh Government provide a Standard Spending
Assessment (SSA) for each Local Authority which, based on population, demographics, deprivation, etc. gives an indicative figure of how much each Local Authority
should spend to deliver services in that area. The final column in the table shows the variance for each Local Authority and places Newport in 20th position, spending
£7.38million less than the assessed position. When assessing overall performance of the Council this information provides a useful backdrop when helping to
determine value for money.
Standard Spending Assessment by Authority (£m) 2017/18 – 2018/19
2017/18 Rank
(Highest to
Lowest

Page 31

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

Unitary Authority
Rhondda Cynon Taf
Neath Port Talbot
Bridgend
Monmouthshire
Gwynedd
Swansea
Blaenau Gwent
Merthyr Tydfil
Denbighshire
Torfaen
Ceredigion
Powys
Carmarthenshire
Isle of Anglesey
The Vale Of Glamorgan
Cardiff
Conwy
Flintshire
Wrexham
Newport
Caerphilly
Pembrokeshire

2017/18
442.52
262.58
248.59
143.88
226.41
414.59
133.10
109.68
185.62
166.92
134.23
239.31
335.32
127.45
216.81
592.63
207.92
257.53
230.51
274.65
333.30
219.61

2018/19
455.02
269.37
255.26
147.47
234.69
426.54
134.63
112.37
189.98
171.02
138.27
246.91
346.06
131.70
222.84
611.41
213.02
264.33
238.04
281.98
339.57
226.40

2018/19 net Budget
471.60
284.85
265.98
157.81
242.86
434.62
142.42
117.46
194.42
173.00
140.24
247.22
345.50
130.95
222.05
608.91
208.48
259.28
232.87
274.60
332.04
215.54

Variance above /
(below) SSA
16.58
15.48
10.72
10.34
8.17
8.08
7.79
5.09
4.44
1.98
1.97
0.31
-0.56
-0.75
-0.79
-2.50
-4.54
-5.05
-5.17
-7.38
-7.53
-10.86

Appendix 1Wales
Performance Indicators in Quartile 1
There were 3 performance indicators in quartile 1 one of which has moved up from quartile 2. Actual
performance for 2 of these indicators has improved, with the percentage of reported fly tipping incidents cleared
within 5 working days and the average number of days taken do deliver a Disabled Facilities Grant ranking 4th
highest in Wales. It is worth noting that whilst PAM/020 % of principal A roads that are in overall poor condition
has moved from quartile 2 into quartile 1 the actual performance has declined, suggesting that performance in
this indicator has declined across Wales.

2016/17

2017/18

Performance Indicator
Quartile

PAM/011: Percentage of reported fly-tipping
incidents cleared within 5 working days of the
incident being reported
PAM/015: Average number of calendar days taken to
deliver a Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG)
PAM/020: Percentage of principal A roads that are in
overall poor condition

PI
value

Rank

PI
value

Rank

Target

1

98.65

3

100

4

97.00%

1

190

6

174

4

238

2

2.50

7

2.60

6

3.40%

Year on year
performance - 201617 vs. 2017-18 (based
on PI value)

Key for PI Value colours
Green
Amber
Red

Performance indicator is meeting or exceeding target
Performance indicator has deviated from target
Performance indicator has deviated from target by more than 15%

Performance Indicators in Quartile 4
One indicator has improved and two have declined in performance when compared to 2016/17. Two
performance indicators were introduced in 2017/18 and have no previous year’s comparison data.
2016/17
Performance Indicator

PAM/008: Percentage of pupil attendance in
secondary schools
PAM/012: Percentage of households threatened
with homelessness successfully prevented from
becoming homeless
PAM/013: Percentage of empty private sector
properties brought back into use during the year
through direct action by the local authority
PAM/016: Number of visits to public libraries during
the year per 1,000 population

PAM/017: Number of visits to local authority sport
and leisure facilities during the year where the
visitor will be participating in physical activity per
1,000 population

Quartile

4

2017/18

PI
value

Rank

93.3

PI
value

Rank

Target

21

93.6

19

93.40%

Year on year
performance - 201617 vs. 2017-18 (based
on PI value)

n/a

-

-

53.1

19

50.0%

n/a

n/a

-

-

1.3

21

2%

n/a

4

3,292

22

3,278

21

3525

3

8,038

14

7,452

18

8118

Page 32

Appendix 1Wales
Performance Indicators where performance has improved
Performance for 5 indicators has improved which represents 36% of the comparable PAM data set. Four of these
indicators have also met or exceeded target. In this section there are only 14 indicators with data which is
comparable to 2016/17.
Performance Indicator
PAM/007: Percenta ge of pupi l a ttenda nce i n pri ma ry
s chool s
PAM/008: Percenta ge of pupi l a ttenda nce i n s econda ry
s chool s
PAM/010: Percenta ge of hi ghwa ys i ns pected of a hi gh or
a ccepta bl e s ta nda rd of cl ea nl i nes s
PAM/011: Percenta ge of reported fl y-ti ppi ng i nci dents
cl ea red wi thi n 5 worki ng da ys of the i nci dent bei ng
reported
PAM/015: Avera ge number of ca l enda r da ys ta ken to
del i ver a Di s a bl ed Fa ci l i ti es Gra nt (DFG)

2016/17
Quartile

2017/18

PI value Rank

PI value Rank

Target

4

94.5

21

94.7

14

94.60%

4

93.3

21

93.6

19

93.40%

3

95.5

12

95.8

11

97%

1

98.65

3

99.74

4

97%

1

186

6

174

4

238

Performance Indicators where performance has declined
Performance for 6 out of 14 indicators (43%) has declined in performance.
Performance Indicator
PAM/001: Number of worki ng da ys /s hi fts per ful l -time
equi va l ent (FTE) l oca l a uthori ty empl oyee l os t due to
s i cknes s a bs ence duri ng the yea r
PAM/016: Number of vi s i ts to publ i c l i bra ri es duri ng the
yea r per 1,000 popul a tion
PAM/017: Number of vi s i ts to l oca l a uthori ty s port a nd
l ei s ure fa ci l i ties duri ng the yea r where the vi s i tor wi l l
be pa rtici pa ting i n phys i ca l a ctivi ty per 1,000 popul a tion
PAM/020: Percentage of pri nci pa l A roa ds tha t a re i n
overa l l poor condi tion
PAM/022: Percentage of C roa ds tha t a re i n overa l l poor
condi tion
PAM/023: Percentage of food es tabl i s hments whi ch a re
‘broa dl y compl i a nt’ wi th food hygi ene s tanda rds

2016/17
Quartile

2017/18

PI value Rank

PI value Rank

2

9.8

9

10.1

9

9.52

4

3,292

22

3,278

21

3525

3

8,038

14

7,452

18

8118

2

2.59

7

2.61

6

3.40%

2

6.9

7

7.1

9

7.40%

2

95.10

11

95.00

12

96.00%

Page 33

Target

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8

Scrutiny Report
Performance Scrutiny Committee – Place and Corporate
Part 1
Date:

9 October 2018

Subject Scrutiny Adviser Report
Author

Scrutiny Adviser

The following people have been invited to attend for this item:
Invitee:

Role

Meryl Lawrence (Scrutiny Adviser)

Present the Committee with the Scrutiny Adviser Report for
discussion and update the Committee on any changes.

Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations
Recommendations to the Committee
The Committee is asked to:
1.

Committee’s Work Programme:
Consider the Committee’s Forward Work Programme Update (Appendix 1):
 Are there any amendments to the topics scheduled to be considered at the next two
Committee meetings?
 Are there any additional invitees that the Committee requires to fully consider the topics?
 Is there any additional information that the Committee would like to request?

2.

Action Plan
Consider the Actions from the meeting on 9 July 2018 (Appendix 2);
 Note the responses for the actions;
 Determine if any further information / action is required;
 Agree to receive an update on outstanding issues at the next meeting.

3.

Information Reports
Note any information reports that have been circulated to the Committee this month.
(None)

4.

Scrutiny Letters
Note any Scrutiny Letters that have been sent, and any responses received. (None)

Page 35

2

Context
Background

2.1

The purpose of a forward work programme is to help ensure Councillors achieve organisation
and focus in the undertaking of enquiries through the Overview and Scrutiny function. Effective
work programming is essential to ensure that the work of Overview and Scrutiny makes a positive
impact upon the Council’s delivery of services.

2.2

Further information about the work programming process, including the procedures for referring
new business to the programme, can be found in our Scrutiny Handbook on the Council’s
Scrutiny webpages (www.newport.gov.uk/scrutiny).

2.3

The Centre for Public Scrutiny’s Good Scrutiny Guide recognises the importance of the forward
work programme. In order to ‘lead and own the process’, it states that Councillors should have
ownership of their Committee’s work programme, and be involved in developing, monitoring and
evaluating it. The Good Scrutiny Guide also states that, in order to make an impact, the scrutiny
workload should be co-ordinated and integrated into corporate processes, to ensure that it
contributes to the delivery of corporate objectives, and that work can be undertaken in a timely
and well-planned manner.
Forward Work Programme Update

2.4

The Committee’s work programme was set in June 2018, including estimated timescales for
when the reports will be considered by the Committee. This programme is then managed and
implemented by the designated Scrutiny Adviser for this Committee under the direction of the
Committee Chairperson.

2.5

Attached as Appendix 1 is the Committee’s Forward Work Programme Update:
The Committee is asked to consider
 Any amendments to the topics scheduled to be considered at the next two Committee
meetings?
 Are there any additional invitees that the Committee requires to fully consider the topics?
 Is there any additional information that the Committee would like to request?
The Committee agreed to keep a degree of flexibility within its work programme to enable the
Committee to respond to urgent / emerging issues. This item is an opportunity for the Committee
members to raise any suggested amendments to the Work Programme.
Action Sheet – 9 July 2018

2.6

Attached at Appendix 2 is the action sheet from the Committee meeting on 9 July 2018.
The responses to completed actions are included in the table.

2.7

The actions that do not have a response will be included on the Action Sheet at the next meeting
to ensure that the Committee can keep track of outstanding actions.
Information Reports

2.8

No information reports have been circulated to Committee this month.
Scrutiny Letters

2.9

No Scrutiny Letters have been received.

Page 36

3

Information Submitted to the Committee

3.1

The following information is attached:
Appendix 1: The Committee’s Forward Work Programme Update;
Appendix 2: Action Sheet – 9 July 2018 Committee meeting

4.

Suggested Areas of Focus
Role of the Committee
The role of the Committee in considering the report is to:


Forward Work Programme Update
Consider:
o Are there any amendments to the topics scheduled to be considered at the
next two Committee meetings?
o Are there any additional invitees that the Committee requires to fully consider
the topics?
o Is there any additional information that the Committee would like to request?



Action Sheet – 9 July Committee Meeting
o Consider the responses to the actions from the meeting;
o Are you satisfied that you have received the necessary information?
o Are there any further issues arising from the responses that you would like to
raise?
o For the actions that do not have responses – these actions will be rolled over
to the next meeting and reported back to the Committee.

Section B – Supporting Information
5

Supporting Information

5.1

The Corporate Assessment, and the subsequent follow up assessment provide background
information on the importance of good work programming. Specific reference is made to the need
to align the Cabinet and Scrutiny work programmes to ensure the value of the Scrutiny Function
is maximised.

5.2

The latest Cabinet work programme was approved by the Cabinet on a monthly basis for the next
12 months and includes the list of reports scheduled for consideration. Effective forward planning
by both Cabinet and Scrutiny needs to be coordinated and integrated in relation to certain reports
to ensure proper consultation takes place before a decision is taken. A link to the Cabinet work
programme is provided here to the Committee as part of this report, to enable the Committee to
ensure that the work programmes continue to reflect key decisions being made by the Cabinet.

6

Links to Council Policies and Priorities

6.1

Having proper work programming procedures in place ensures that the work of Overview and
Scrutiny makes a positive impact upon the Council’s delivery of services, contributes to the delivery

Page 37

of corporate objectives, and ensures that work can be undertaken in a timely and well-planned
manner.
6.2

This report relates to the Committee’s Work Programme, Actions from Committee’s and
Information Reports that support the achievement of the Scrutiny Committee, in accordance with
the Law and Regulation Service Plan, Objectives, Actions and Measures and the Wellbeing
objectives:
Well-being
Objectives

Promote economic
growth and
regeneration whilst
protecting the
environment

Improve skills,
educational
outcomes &
employment
opportunities

Corporate Plan
Commitments
Supporting
Function

Thriving City

Aspirational People

Enable
people to be
healthy,
independent
& resilient

Build
cohesive &
sustainable
communities

Resilient
Communities

Modernised Council

7

Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act

7.1

The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015 which came into force in April 2016 sets the
context for the move towards long term planning of services.

7.2

General questions
 How is this area / policy affected by the new legislation?
 How will this decision / policy / proposal impact upon future generations? What is the long
term impact?
 What evidence is provided to demonstrate WFGA has been / is being considered?
 Evidence from Community Profiles / other data?
 Evidence of links to Wellbeing Assessment / Objectives / Plan?

7.3

Wellbeing Goals
 How are the Wellbeing goals reflected in the policy / proposal / action?
o A prosperous Wales
o A resilient Wales
o A healthier Wales
o A more equal Wales
o A Wales of cohesive communities
o A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
o A globally responsible Wales

7.4

Sustainable Development Principles


Does the report / proposal demonstrate how as an authority we are working in accordance
with the sustainable development principles from the act when planning services?
o Long Term
The importance of balancing short-term needs with the need to safeguard the ability to
also meet long-term needs
o Prevention
How acting to prevent problems occurring or getting worse may help public bodies meet
their objectives
o Integration

Page 38

Considering how the public body’s well-being objectives may impact upon each of the
well-being goals, on their other objectives, or on the objectives of other public bodies
o Collaboration
Acting in collaboration with any other person (or different parts of the body itself) that
could help the body to meet its well-being objectives
o Involvement
The importance of involving people with an interest in achieving the well-being goals,
and ensuring that those people reflect the diversity of the area which the body serves.

8

Background Papers




The Essentials - Wellbeing of Future Generation Act (Wales)
Corporate Plan 2017 - 2022
The Corporate Assessment and follow up assessment.

Report Completed: 20 September 2018

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 1
Performance Scrutiny Committee – Place and Corporate
– Forward Work Programme Update

Monday, 19 November 2018 at 4pm
Topic

Information Required / Committee’s Role

Invitees

Performance
Update Mid
Year 2018-19
Service Area
Performance
data

Performance Monitoring - holding the executive
to account for the Council’s performance,
focusing on:

For Place:
 Strategic Director – Place








Achievement of outcomes and actions
within service plans;
Scrutinising progress in improvements to
areas of poor performance;
Assessing the extent to which performance
objectives are contributing to the overall
objectives and priorities of the Council
including an update upon Improvement
Objectives and how linked to Well-being
Objectives and the Corporate Plan;
Assessing the extent to which performance
is in keeping with the performance
management strategy;
Scrutinising service area financial
dashboards.

The Committee will receive an overview of the
performance of the service area including a list of the
all of the service plan measures and an indicator of
whether the targets have been achieved (red, amber
and green status). This will also include a summary
of the common measures, which include complaints
answered in timeframes, staff sickness rates, and the
use of agency staff and overtime. For any red and
amber measure, the Committee will also receive
more detailed information on these measures.
The Committee will be receiving this update prior to
Cabinet considering the report and any comments or
recommendations from the Committee will be
provided to the Cabinet when they consider this
report.

Page 41

For Regeneration, Investment and
Housing:
 Head of Regeneration, Investment and
Housing;
 Cabinet Member for Regeneration and
Housing
 Cabinet Member for Community and
Resources.
For People and Business Change:
 Head of People and Business Change;
 Cabinet Member for Community and
Resources.
For Finance:
 Head of Finance.

Appendix 1
Performance Scrutiny Committee – Place and Corporate
– Forward Work Programme Update
Monday, 3 December 2018 at 4pm
Topic

Information Required / Committee’s Role

Invitees

Performance
Update Mid
Year 2018-19
Service Area
Performance
data

Performance Monitoring - holding the executive
to account for the Council’s performance,
focusing on:

For Place:
 Strategic Director – Place








Achievement of outcomes and actions
within service plans;
Scrutinising progress in improvements to
areas of poor performance;
Assessing the extent to which performance
objectives are contributing to the overall
objectives and priorities of the Council
including an update upon Improvement
Objectives and how linked to Well-being
Objectives and the Corporate Plan;
Assessing the extent to which performance
is in keeping with the performance
management strategy;
Scrutinising service area financial
dashboards.

For City Services:
 Head of Streetscene and City Services;
 Cabinet Member for Streetscene;
 Cabinet Member for Community and
Resources.
For Law & Regulation:
 Head of Law and Regulation;
 Cabinet Member for Licensing and
Regulation.

The Committee will receive an overview of the
performance of the service area including a list of the
all of the service plan measures and an indicator of
whether the targets have been achieved (red, amber
and green status). This will also include a summary
of the common measures, which include complaints
answered in timeframes, staff sickness rates, and the
use of agency staff and overtime. For any red and
amber measure, the Committee will also receive
more detailed information on these measures.
The Committee will be receiving this update prior to
Cabinet considering the report and any comments or
recommendations from the Committee will be
provided to the Cabinet when they consider this
report.

Scrutiny Committee Briefings
Topic:
Quality of Road Network
Service Plans – to include Performance Management and Budget
Analysis
Housing - to include an overview of the different types of landlord and
tenancies, current schemes and initiatives, and the advice and
services available.

Page 42

Timescale:
24 September 2018
Early November 2018
(prior to report on Service Plans Mid Year Review)
November / December 2018

APPENDIX 2
Performance Scrutiny Committee - People
ACTION SHEET – 9 July 2018
Service Area

Action

1

Performance
Update – Year
End 2017-18

General Performance
Update Report

The Committee requested that the
previous two years’ performance data be
included in future performance reports to
enable comparison and trend monitoring.

Scrutiny /
Performance

Actioned - the Committee’s Work Programme
includes a new way of reporting performance via
Service Plan - Mid and Year End Reviews for
each Service Area in its remit, commencing in
Nov / Dec meetings. Two years’ previous data
can be provided at year end for performance
measures that data has previously been
reported.

2

Performance
Update – Year
End 2017-18

Regeneration,
Investment and
Housing

PAM/016 (LCL/001b) Use of Public
Library Services – The confirmed target
figure for Amber Measure PAM/016 was
requested.

Head of
Regeneration
Investment and
Housing

Actioned – Information requested emailed to
Committee Members.

3

Performance
Update – Year
End 2017-18

Regeneration,
Investment and
Housing

The updated position from Welsh
Government upon Business rates
assistance was requested.

Head of
Regeneration
Investment and
Housing

Actioned - Information requested emailed to
Committee Members.

4

Performance
Update – Year
End 2017-18

People and
Business
Change

PBC/062% ICT Helpdesk calls resolved
at first point of contact – The latest
monthly breakdown from SRS regarding
system and equipment failures.

Head of People
and Business
Change

Requested and awaiting response.

Page 43

Agenda Item

Responsibility

Outcome

This page is intentionally left blank

